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c/o NEDAP / 176 Grand Street / New York, NY / 10013
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December 16, 2011

Michael T. McRaith

Director, Federal Insurance Office
Department of the Treasury
Federal Insurance Office, MT 1001
1500 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW.
Washington, DC 20220

Via Federal eRulemaking Portal: http://www.regulations.gov

RE: Public Input on the Report to Congress on How To Modernize and Improve the
System of Insurance Regulation in the United States (Document ID TREAS-DO-2011-0010-
0001)

Dear Mr. McRaith:

The undersigned members of New Yorkers for Responsible Lending (NYRL) are responding to
the request for comment by the Treasury Department’s Federal Insurance Office on its report to
Congress on how to modernize and improve insurance regulation in the United States. We will
address how the FIO should improve consumer protection for insurance products and practices,
and improve access to fair and affordable insurance products for traditionally underserved
communities, particularly low income communities and communities of color.

New Yorkers for Responsible Lending (NYRL) is a 158-member state-wide coalition that
promotes access to fair and affordable financial services and the preservation of assets for all
New Yorkers and their communities. NYRL members represent community financial
institutions, community-based organizations, affordable housing groups, advocates for seniors,
legal services organizations, and community reinvestment, fair lending, and consumer advocacy
groups.

We urge the Federal Insurance Office to implement a national homeowners insurance data
disclosure regulation pursuant to its authority in Section 502 of the Dodd-Frank Wall
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. Property insurers routinely fail to serve low
income communities and communities of color and are largely exempt from public


http://www.regulations.gov/

scrutiny. National homeowners insurance data disclosure following the model of the Home
Mortgage Disclosure Act for residential mortgages would allow regulators and the public
to hold insurers accountable and help ensure that all communities have access to fair and
affordable insurance products.

Lack of fair access to homeowners insurance

Evidence shows that insurers that write homeowners policies fail to adequately serve
communities of color. Homeowners in communities of color pay more for inferior insurance
products and are more often denied private market coverage than homeowners in predominantly
white neighborhoods.

These disparities are in fact fair housing issues that limit access to homeownership for black and
Latino communities and borrowers, as mortgage lenders will not make loans to applicants who
cannot obtain homeowners insurance. When homeowners in communities of color do obtain
insurance, they are more likely to receive high-cost, low-coverage insurance that unnecessarily
increases monthly housing costs and does not provide adequate coverage in the event of damage
to the property.

On the ground research conducted by NYRL members has documented the clear and pervasive
racial disparities in the homeowners insurance market in New York State. For example:

e In Syracuse, matched pair testing revealed that a local insurer offered full replacement
value coverage policies to white homeowners for just $1 more annually than the
substantially inferior market value policies offered to black homeowners (see attached
HUD Complaint).!

e In surveys of Rochester homeowners, black homeowners reported paying an average of
36% more for homeowners insurance coverage compared to white, non-Hispanic
homeowners.?

e In New York City and Rochester,? studies indicate that FAIR Plan policies are heavily
concentrated in communities of color, suggesting that these same communities lack equal
access to private market homeowners insurance.

! “Erje Insurance agrees to settlement in U.S. lawsuit that alleges discrimination against Syracuse black people,” by
Tim Knauss. Syracuse Post-Standard, April 1, 2009, as found at:
http://www.syracuse.com/news/index.ssf/2009/04/erie_insurance agrees to_settl.html.

% This report, The Homeowners Insurance Gap, can be found at:
http://www.empirejustice.org/publications/reports/homeowners-insurance-gap-1.html.
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Needed: Insurance data disclosure

These disparities illustrate the pressing need for reform in the property and casualty insurance
industry. Congress gave clear authority to the Federal Insurance Office to implement
homeowners insurance data disclosure. Title V of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act gives the FIO authority “to monitor the extent to which traditionally
underserved communities and consumers, minorities...,and low- and moderate-income persons
have access to affordable insurance products” (31 USC §313(c)). In addition, the FIO may
“receive and collect data and information on and from the insurance industry and insurers; enter
into information-sharing agreements; analyze and disseminate data and information; and issue
reports regarding all lines of insurance except health insurance” (31 USC §313(e)).

The Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA) has proven that data disclosure is an effective tool
against discriminatory financial practices. Using HMDA data, regulators and community groups
have held banks accountable for redlining and predatory and discriminatory mortgage lending
practices. Insurers, however, share very little data about their business practices in most states,
leaving both the public and regulators without sufficient information to identify and address
problematic practices.

Eight states—California, 1llinois, Maryland, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Missouri, Texas and
Wisconsin—already require insurers to report data on the homeowners insurance policies they
write, and most of the states make the data available to the public. Insurance regulators,
advocacy groups and the Department of Justice have successfully used the data to identify and
address Fair Housing Act violations and other discriminatory practices in the homeowners
insurance market. Advocates in Massachusetts report that, as a result of insurance data
disclosure, insurers now take particular care to serve previously underserved communities.

The data collected should include the following data fields to ensure that the FIO collects the
data necessary to identify discriminatory or abusive practices:

e Applications received and application outcomes;

e Application channel (broker or internet), and, if broker originated, county and census
tract of broker office location and if broker is captured or independent;

e Number of policies written, non-renewed, canceled or terminated, and type of policy
(market value or replacement value);

e Number of claims approved and denied;

® The Rochester report, How Fair is New York’s FAIR Plan?, can be found at:
http://www.empirejustice.org/publications/reports/how-fair-is-nys-fair-plan.html.
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e Losses incurred or paid;

e Name of insurer and name of insurer’s corporate parent;

e Race, ethnicity and gender of each applicant and insured; and

e State, county and census tract in which applicants’ and insureds’ properties are located.

The FIO should make policy-level data publicly available, just as loan-level HMDA data is made
available to the public.

Conclusion

We urge the Federal Insurance Office to implement homeowners insurance data disclosure as an
effective way to carry out its responsibility to monitor access to insurance in underserved
communities, and as a means to eliminate redlining and other discriminatory practices in the
insurance marketplace.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this important issue.
Sincerely,

Albany County Rural Housing Alliance, Inc.

Arbor Housing and Development

Central New York Citizens in Action, Inc.

CHANGER, Inc.

District Council 37 Municipal Employees Legal Services
Empire Justice Center

Fair Housing Council of Central New York, Inc.

Greater Rochester Community Reinvestment Coalition
Grow Brooklyn

Housing Help, Inc.

Long Island Housing Services, Inc.

NEDAP

NeighborWorks® Rochester

New York Public Interest Research Group (NYPIRG)
PathStone

Pratt Area Community Council

PUSH Buffalo

Queens Legal Services

Securities Arbitration and Consumer Clinic, Syracuse University

Staten Island Legal Services
Western New York Law Center



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES

The Secretary, United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development, on behalf of
the Assistant Secretary for Fair Housing and Equal
Opportunity Kim Kendrick,

Charging Party,
V.

Erie Insurance Company; Erie Insurance Company
of New York; Erie Indemnity Company; and Erie
Insurance Company, Erie Insurance Company of
New York and Erie Indemnity Company
collectively operating with others as the

“Erie Insurance Group,”

Respondents,
FHEO Complaint Numbers:

02-06-0173-8
02-02-0230-8

and

The Secretary, United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development, on behalf of
the Fair Housing Council of Central New York,
Inc.,

Charging Party,
V.

Erie Insurance Company; Erie Insurance Company
of New York; Erie Indemnity Company; and Erie
Insurance Company, Erie Insurance Company of
New York, and Erie Indemnity Company
collectively operating with others as the

“Erie Insurance Group;” R.K. Johnson &
Associates Insurance Agency, Inc.; Salanger &
Hayward Agency, Inc.; The Vacco Agency, Inc.;
CNY Insurance Associates; and the Grimsley
Agency, Inc.,
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On or about February 14, 2002, the Fair Housing Council of Central New York, Inc.,
dual-filed a verified complaint, Complaint 02-02-0230-8, with New York State and the United
States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”), alleging that Erie Insurance
Group, R.K. Johnson & Associates Insurance Agency, Inc., Salanger & Hayward Agency, Inc.,
CNY Insurance Associates, The Vacco Agency, Inc., and the Don Grimsley Agency violated the
Fair Housing Act as amended in 1988, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq. (hereafter the “Act”), by
discriminating based on race and color. As of July 20, 2004, the Don Grimsley Agency is doing
business as the Grimsley Agency, Inc. On December 24, 2002, HUD reactivated Complaint 02-
02-0230-8 from the New York State Division of Human Rights. On February 9, 2006, the
FHCCNY amended this complaint to add additional alleged violations of the Act, including 42
U.S.C. §§ 3604(a) and (b). On April 9, 2006, the FHCCNY amended this complaint to name
additional entities as respondents including Erie Insurance Company; Erie Insurance Company
of New York; Erie Indemnity Company; and Erie Insurance Company, Erie Insurance Company
of New York, and Erie Indemnity Company collectively operating with others as the “Erie
Insurance Group.”

On December 22, 2005, the Assistant Secretary for Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity
for the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“Assistant Secretary”)
filed Complaint 02-06-0173-8 against Erie Insurance Group, alleging violations of 42 U.S.C.

§§ 3604(a) and (b). On April 9, 2006, the Assistant Secretary amended Complaint 02-06-0173-8
to name additional entities as respondents including Erie Insurance Company; Erie Insurance
Company of New York; Erie Indemnity Company; and Erie Insurance Company, Erie Insurance
Company of New York, and Erie Indemnity Company collectively operating with others as the
“Erie Insurance Group.”

The Act authorizes the issuance of a Charge of Discrimination (““Charge”) on behalf of an
aggrieved person following an investigation and a determination that reasonable cause exists to
believe that a discriminatory housing practice has occurred. 42 U.S.C. § 3610 (g)(1) and (2).
The Secretary has delegated to the General Counsel, 54 Fed.Reg. 13121 (1989), who has
redelegated to the Associate General Counsel for Fair Housing and the Assistant General
Counsel for Fair Housing Enforcement, 67 Fed.Reg. 44234 (2002), the authority to issue such a
charge, following a determination of reasonable cause by the Assistant Secretary for Fair
Housing and Equal Opportunity or his or her designee.

By Determination of Reasonable Cause of October 19, 2006, the Deputy Assistant
Secretary for Enforcement and Programs, on behalf of the Assistant Secretary, has determined
that reasonable cause exists to believe that a discriminatory housing practice has occurred in
Complaints 02-02-0230-8 and 02-06-0173-8, based on race, and has authorized and directed the
issuance of this Charge of Discrimination.
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II.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

It is unlawful to refuse to sell or rent after the making of a bona fide offer, or to refuse to
negotiate for the sale or rental of, or otherwise make unavailable or deny, a dwelling to
any person because of race. 42 U.S.C. § 3604(a).

It is unlawful to discriminate against any person in the terms, conditions, or privileges of
sale or rental of a dwelling, or in the provision of services or facilities in connection
therewith, because of race. 42 U.S.C. § 3604(b).

It is unlawful to refuse to provide municipal services or property or hazard insurance for
dwellings or to provide such services or insurance differently because of race. 24 C.F.R.

§ 100.70(d)(4).

SUMMARY OF ALLEGATIONS IN SUPPORT OF THIS CHARGE

Based on HUD’s investigation of the allegations contained in the aforementioned

complaints and the aforementioned Determination of Reasonable Cause, Respondents Erie
Insurance Company; Erie Insurance Company of New York; Erie Indemnity Company; and Erie
Insurance Company, Erie Insurance Company of New York, and Erie Indemnity Company
collectively operating with others as the “Erie Insurance Group;” R.K. Johnson & Associates
Insurance Agency, Inc.; Salanger & Hayward Agency, Inc.; CNY Insurance Associates; The
Vacco Agency, Inc.; and the Grimsley Agency, Inc., are charged with discriminating in the sale
of insurance on the basis of race in violation of 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604(a) and 3604(b), as follows:

L.

Complainant Fair Housing Council of Central New York, Inc. (“FHCCNY”) is a fair
housing agency located in Syracuse, New York, whose mission includes: helping enforce
laws that prohibit discrimination in housing; educating individuals about their rights and
responsibilities in the housing market; helping to create and sustain diverse
neighborhoods; and engaging in advocacy to promote these objectives. The FHCCNY
operates throughout central and northeastern New York State.

Respondent “Erie Insurance Group” is a fictitious name' registered in the State of
Pennsylvania that describes a group of Erie entities that sell homeowners, renters, and
various other types of insurance in eleven states (including New York) and the District of
Columbia. The Erie Insurance Group includes, but is not limited to, the Erie Insurance
Company, the Erie Insurance Company of New York, and the Erie Indemnity Company.
According to Erie’s website, the Erie Insurance Group’s home office is located at 100
Erie Insurance Place, Erie, Pennsylvania 16530.

Respondent Erie Indemnity Company is a Pennsylvania insurance business corporation
and the management company for the Erie Insurance Group. The Erie Indemnity
Company’s registered office address is 144 E. 6™ Street, Erie, Pennsylvania 16530. Upon

! The registration of fictitious names in Pennsylvania is governed by the “Fictitious Names Act.” 54 Pa. Cons. Stat.
§§ 301-332 (2006).
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11.

12.

information provided during the investigation, the Erie Indemnity Company owns the
Erie Insurance Company and the Erie Insurance Company of New York.

Respondent Erie Insurance Company is a Pennsylvania insurance business corporation
licensed to sell insurance in New York State. The Erie Insurance Company’s registered
office address is 144 E. 6® Street, Erie, Pennsylvania 16530.

Respondent Erie Insurance Company of New York is a New York corporation licensed to
sell insurance in New York State. According to the New York State Insurance
Department’s website, the Erie Insurance Company of New York’s office address is 120
Corporate Woods, Suite 150, Rochester, New York 14623. Unless otherwise specified,
the Erie entities described in paragraphs III 2-5 are collectively referred hereafter as
“Erie.”

Erie’s Personal Lines Underwriting Division, located at Erie’s home office in Erie,
Pennsylvania, drafts the underwriting guidelines for New York and for other states in
which entities of the Erie Insurance Group sell insurance policies. The Personal Lines
Underwriting Division is part of all of the Erie entities, and acts for and on behalf of the
Erie Insurance Company and the Erie Insurance Company of New York when drafting
underwriting guidelines for New York State.

Respondent R.K. Johnson & Associates Insurance Agency, Inc., is an insurance agency
licensed to sell Erie insurance products located at 4921 West Genesee Street, Onondaga
County, Camillus, New York 13031.

Respondent Salanger & Hayward Agency, Inc., is an insurance agency licensed to sell
Erie insurance products located at 3700 James Street, Onondaga County, Syracuse, New
York 13206.

Respondent CNY Insurance Associates is an insurance agency licensed to sell Erie
insurance products located at 4205 Long Branch Road, Onondaga County, Liverpool,
New York 13090.

Respondent The Vacco Agency, Inc., is an insurance agency licensed to sell Erie
insurance products located at 6848 East Genesee Street, Onondaga County, Fayetteville,
New York 13066. :

Respondent the Grimsley Agency, Inc., formerly doing business as the Don Grimsley
Agency, is an insurance agency licensed to sell Erie insurance products located at 5320
Taft Road, Onondaga County, North Syracuse, New York 13212. Unless otherwise
specified, the insurance agencies described in paragraphs III 7-11 are referred collectively
hereafter as “the agencies.”

The agencies went through an agent appointment process with Erie, which included a
detailed interview and investigation process. Upon approval, the agencies signed an
“Agency Agreement” with Erie and Erie licensed the agencies through the state insurance
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department to secure applications for the lines of insurance that Erie writes in New York
State.

The “Agency Agreement” provides that Erie’s authorization of the agencies to act on
Erie’s behalf “is subject to...the rules and regulations of ERIE;” that “ERIE has the
right...to refuse to write, cancel or refuse to renew contracts of insurance in full
compliance with applicable law;” and that the agencies must “abide by the manuals,
rules, regulations, and specific instructions of ERIE.”

Erie assists the agencies with providing quotes for Erie insurance and underwrites
insurance applications in the following ways: (1) Erie provides the agencies with
software to help them quote and write applications; (2) the agencies submit applications
for homeowner’s insurance and endorsements to Erie through the computer; (3) if one of
the agencies sells an Erie policy, the underwriting for that policy takes place at Erie’s
headquarters in Erie, Pennsylvania, through Erie’s automated underwriting system or
through one of the Erie underwriters responsible for New York State; and (4) Erie makes
the final decision on whether it will maintain an insurance policy the agencies write
because the agencies are obligated to follow Erie underwriting guidelines or Erie can
cancel the risk.

Erie trains and monitors the agencies in various ways including: (1) when an agency first
starts selling Erie insurance, an Erie district sales manager is available to help train
individuals at the agency on Erie products, procedures, processes, policies, and type of
coverage, and how to rate a policy with Erie and (2) Erie has an agency review process to
work with and monitor the agencies.

Erie provides the agencies with various materials including, but not limited to, marketing
materials with Erie’s logo on them, homeowner’s insurance applications, the “Erie
Agency Guide,” and underwriting guidelines with rate pages.

Erie pays the agencies a commission for each sale of Erie homeowners insurance. In
addition, during specific contest periods, the agencies may receive a bonus or other
financial incentive based on the number of insurance policies submitted, approved, and
still maintained by Erie.

Erie sells its insurance policies through agents and Erie’s underwriting guidelines require
its agents to inspect properties to be insured. Erie also has its agents update Erie
insurance policies for policyholders.

Several of the agencies clearly displayed to potential policyholders that they sell Erie
insurance products. At Salanger & Hayward Agency, Inc., an Erie sign was posted in the
office lobby. At The Vacco Agency, Inc., an Erie sign and its logo were displayed
adjacent to the agency’s main sign and an Erie sign was posted on the fence leading up to
the main entrance. At the Grimsley Agency, Inc., Erie’s name and logo were displayed
on signs in the office, on business cards, stickers, and stationary.



20. The respondent agencies are agents of Erie.

21. Between August 2000 and May 2001, the FHCCNY conducted a total of twelve paired
tests of Erie and the agencies. Each individual agency was the subject of two or three
separate paired tests.” Each of the paired tests occurred within approximately seven days
to two months of each other.

22. In the tests, the paired testers posed as first-time homebuyers with no insurance claims in
the past five years. For each paired test, a tester called one of the agencies seeking
homeowners insurance for a home located in Liverpool, New York. A second tester
subsequently called the same agency seeking homeowners insurance for a home located
in Syracuse, New York. In each of the twelve tests, the testers did not request a specific
brand of homeowners insurance and the agencies routinely offered at least one of the
matched-paired testers an Erie policy.

23. In the tests, the FHCCNY closely matched several characteristics of the Liverpool and
Syracuse homes including, but not limited to, the (1) purchase price of the property, (2)
age of the property, (3) type of construction, (4) square footage of the property, (5)
number of bedrooms/bathrooms, (6) age and type of the siding, roof, and heating and
plumbing systems, (7) type of wiring, (8) distance to a fire department and fire hydrant,
and (9) presence of burglar and smoke alarms.

24. In Tests 305, 307, 308, and 402, the paired testers seeking insurance for homes in
Syracuse did not receive a quote for homeowners insurance despite a specific request,
whereas the paired testers seeking insurance for homes in Liverpool received a quote
over the telephone or by mail.

25. In Tests 304, 309, 408, and 410, the paired testers seeking insurance for homes in
Syracuse did not receive a quote for an Ultracover homeowner’s insurance policy nor
were they told of the possibility of Ultracover, whereas the paired testers seeking
insurance for homes in Liverpool received a quote for an Ultracover policy. In Tests 304,
309, 408, and 410, the tester seeking insurance for a home in Syracuse received a quote
for an Extracover homeowner’s insurance policy.

26. According to respondents, the difference between the terms of Ultracover and Extracover
is a $1.00 endorsement for full replacement coverage instead of 80 percent replacement
coverage. The most comprehensive homeowner’s insurance policy sold by Erie is the
Ultracover policy. The Extracover homeowner’s insurance policy has the second
broadest coverage. The Ultracover policy provides more extensive replacement cost
coverage, both in the amount of replacement cost coverage and the scope of property
covered by the replacement cost coverage, than the Extracover policy. Yet, the
difference in cost between an Ultracover and Extracover policy is $1.00.

? The breakdown of the tests by agency is as follows: (1) in Tests 304, 309, and 310, The Vacco Agency, Inc., was
tested; (2) in Tests 305, 307, and 308, Salanger & Hayward Agency, Inc., was tested; (3) in Tests 401 and 408, CNY
Insurance Associates was tested; (4) in Tests 402 and 409, the Grimsley Agency, Inc., was tested; and (5) in Tests
403 and 410, R.K. Johnson & Associates Insurance Agency, Inc., was tested.



27. Erie claimed that, as of June 2001, after the tests were conducted, but before the
FHCCNY’s complaint was filed, Ultracover was the only coverage offered. However,
during an administrative deposition conducted by HUD in November 2003, an Erie Vice-
President testified that, at the time of the deposition, Erie was offering both Ultracover
and Extracover policy forms in all Erie locations in New York State.

28. According to 2000 census data, Liverpool is predominately white and has substantially
fewer African-American residents and owner-occupied dwellings with an African-
American resident than Syracuse. Liverpool and Syracuse are nearby communities
within Onondaga County, New York.

29. In the census tracts where the properties involved in the testing were located in
Liverpool, the number of owner-occupied dwellings with an African-American resident
ranged from approximately 0.4% to 1.3%.

30. In the census tracts where the properties involved in the testing were located in Syracuse,
the number of owner-occupied dwellings with an African-American resident ranged from

approximately 37% to 61%.

31. The investigation revealed that there is spatial separation between the white and African-
American communities in Syracuse and the Syracuse properties involved in the testing
conducted by the FHCCNY are located in areas that are perceived as predominately
African-American.

32. An analysis of policy data provided by Erie, covering policies in force from January 1,
1999 through June 30, 2004, including policy activity, issuance, renewal, cancellation
and non-renewal, from November 1973 through May 2005, reveals that Erie’s owners’
insurance market shares,” in both Onondaga County and New York State, decrease as the
percentage of African-American population of the ZIP Code increases. Based on a linear
regression analysis, the percentage African-American population of a ZIP Code is a
statistically-significant predictor of Erie’s sales in that ZIP Code: the higher the African-
American population, the fewer sales by Erie.

33. The number of Erie agents from December 21, 1994 through February 1, 2005, by ZIP
Code was compared to the African-American share of the population by ZIP Code in
Onondaga County and throughout New York State. In both Onondaga County and New
York State, the number of Erie agents decreases as the percentage African-American
population of the ZIP Code increases. In Onondaga County, there are no Erie agents in
the ZIP Codes with an African-American population over 10%. In New York State, in
the 600 ZIP Codes in which the African-American population is less than 1% of the ZIP
Code’s population, Erie has 49 agents, representing 2.7 agents per 100,000 population.
In New York State, in the 27 ZIP Codes in which the African-American population is
greater than 30% of the ZIP Code’s population, Erie has two agents, representing 0.55

# Market share refers to the number of Erie policies divided by the number of occupied units. Market share is a
measure of how many policies Erie is writing relative to the number of potential customers.
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agents per 100,000 population. Stated differently, in New York State, Erie has four times
as many agents per 100,000 population in ZIP Codes with the lowest African-American
share of the population than in ZIP Codes with the highest African-American share of the
population.

In the State of New York, Erie does not market its products or appoint agents on Long
Island, in New York City, or in the suburban counties north of New York City, including
Delaware, Columbia, Dutchess, Orange, Sullivan, Putnam and Ulter Counties. Erie
appoints agents and markets its insurance products in the remainder of New York State
from Erie County east through Albany County. The parts of New York State where Erie
has no agents and does not actively sell its products are also the parts of New York State
with a larger African-American population. The absence of Erie agents in African-
American communities in New York State is consistent with the lower insurance sales by
Erie in those communities. Erie requires agents to inspect properties to be insured.

Erie policy data was analyzed covering policies in force from January 1, 1999 through
June 30, 2004, including policy activity, issuance, renewal, cancellation, and non-
renewal, from November 1973 through May 2005. For New York State, a regression
analysis indicates a statistically-significant relationship between African-American
population and fewer sales of Ultracover homeowner’s insurance policies, as measured
by the percentage of Ultracover policies to total homeowners’ policies sold by Erie. For
Onondaga County, there is statistical evidence of a relationship between African-
American population and fewer sales of Ultracover homeowner’s insurance policies, as
measured by the percentage of Ultracover policies to total homeowners’ policies sold by
Erie. This data confirms the testing evidence that homeowners in African-American
areas were not offered Erie’s best insurance product (Ultracover) and paid essentially the
same amount of money for lesser coverage.

The African-American population of a ZIP Code is a statistically-significant predictor of
Erie sales in that ZIP Code, as measured by Erie’s market share and a statistically-
significant predictor of the policy form sold by Erie, as measured by the Ultracover share
of total homeowners’ policies.

By offering higher-quality homeowner’s insurance products (Ultracover) to homeowners
in predominately white areas of Liverpool, and either lesser-coverage (Extracover) or no
homeowner’s insurance products to homeowners in recognized African-American areas
in Syracuse, Erie and the agencies discriminated based on race in violation of 42 U.S.C.
§§ 3604(b) or (a).

Erie sells fewer homeowners’ policies in African-American communities in New York
State, sells lesser-coverage homeowners’ policies to African-Americans in New York
State, and has fewer agents in New York State in ZIP Codes where African-Americans
comprise a high percentage of the population than in ZIP Codes with few African-
Americans. There is reasonable cause to believe that Erie discriminates and has
discriminated in the sale of homeowners insurance in New York State in violation of 42
U.S.C. §§ 3604(a) and (b) since at least April 21, 2001.



39. Respondents’ actions diverted the FHCCNY s resources and frustrated its mission to
ensure equal availability of housing and housing services. The FHCCNY’s damages
include, but are not limited to, significant staff time costs, out-of-pocket expenses, testing
fees, costs for tester training, and other test-related costs. Due to the respondents’
discrimination, the FHCCNY was unable to complete several activities or projects
including, but not limited to, a sales testing project, a grant application for JP Morgan
Human and Supportive Services, a self-testing contract with the National Fair Housing
Alliance, and a predatory lending brochure.

40. By discriminating against African-Americans in the provision of homeowners insurance
in New York State, Erie harmed the public interest.

IV.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development, through the Office of General Counsel, and pursuant to 42 U.S.C.
§ 3610(g)(2)(A), hereby charges Respondents with engaging in discriminatory housing
practices in violation of 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604(a) and 3604(b) and prays that an order be issued

that:

1.

Declares that the discriminatory housing practices of Respondents as set forth above
violate the Fair Housing Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sections 3601-3619;

Enjoins Respondents, their agents, employees, and successors, and all other persons
in active concert or participation with any of them from discriminating because of
race against any person in the provision of homeowners insurance;

Awards such damages as will fully compensate the Fair Housing Council of Central
New York, Inc. for its actual damages caused by Respondents’ discriminatory
conduct pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §§ 3604(a) and (b);

Awards significant public interest relief such as compensation for homeowners who
were denied Erie insurance or who were not offered Ultracover insurance because of
their race or the racial composition of their neighborhood; training for Erie agents and
corporate personnel; recruitment and hiring of African-American insurance agents;
and marketing and outreach to African-American communities in New York State;

and

Awards civil penalties against Erie Insurance Company; Erie Insurance Company of
New York; Erie Indemnity Company; and Erie Insurance Company, Erie Insurance
Company of New York, and Erie Indemnity Company collectively operating with
others as the “Erie Insurance Group;” R.K. Johnson & Associates Insurance Agency,
Inc.; Salanger & Hayward Agency, Inc.; CNY Insurance Associates; The Vacco
Agency, Inc.; and the Grimsley Agency, Inc., for each violation of the Act
committed, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3612(g)(3).



The Secretary of HUD further prays for additional relief as may be appropriate under

42 U.S.C. § 3612(g)(3).

October 20, 2006
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Respectfully submitted,

A 2C

arry DNC arey
Associate General Cdunsel for Fair Housing
451 Seventh Street, SW, Room 10272
Washington, DC 20410
(202) 708-2787

Ww &MW
Linda M. Cruciani

Assistant General Counsel
Fair Housing Enforcement Division

Dol ¢ (O naki—

Tenille E. Washburn

Trial Attorney

Fair Housing Enforcement Division
451 Seventh Street, SW, Room 10270
Washington, DC 20410

(202) 708-0570






